
From: Posey, Tracey B <tracey.posey@gapac.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 2, 2025 11:24 AM 
To: Jasmine Yuan 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O980 Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC (Minor, 

38390) 

Jasmine,  

Good afternoon.  We do not have any comments on the working draft permit.   

In regard to your question on whether we would like to incorporate any of the off-permit change 
notifications, Georgia-Pacific is open to TCEQ’s direction on whether it is worthwhile at this time to 
administratively incorporate the minor NSR authorizations that are subject of the four off-permit 
change notifications submitted since last renewal of SOP No. O980.  The table below summarizes 
the notifications.  None of the projects are expected to result in unit-level requirements in the Title 
V permit.    

Affected Unit 
ID Nos.  

TCEQ Project 
No.  Project Description 

NSR 
Authorization 
for 
Notification  

Date of 
Notification 
Submittal 

N/A 37592 Robotic Patch Lines 177032 1/24/2025 
N/A 38320 Chipper No. 1 Replacement 180166 6/16/2025 
N/A 38321 Woodyard 

Modernization Project 
179775 6/16/2025 

N/A 38486 Ash Handling 180381 7/7/2025 

Thank you! 

Tracey Posey 
Environmental Manager  
Georgia-Pacific Wood Products 
Corrigan Office 936.398.7175| Cell 936.933.9883|Fax 936.398.7120 



From: Jasmine Yuan 
Sent: Wednesday, October 29, 2025 9:26 AM 
To: Posey, Tracey B 
Subject: Technical Review - O980 Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC (Minor, 38390) 
Attachments: SOP - O980 Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC (Minor, 38390) Draft.docx 

Good Morning,  
I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) revision application of Permit 
No. O980 for Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC, Corrigan Plywood Manufacturing Plant, 
Corrigan Complex. This application has been assigned Project No. 38390. Please address 
all correspondence pertaining to this permit application, including any updates, to me at 
the address below, and use both the Permit and Project reference numbers above to 
facilitate tracking. 

In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V permits 
based on the following:  
a. NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency –please refer to our periodic monitoring
guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA has, so far, considered sufficient.
b. Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR permits and PBR
submittals.
c. High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary Table. The high
level terms are sometimes used in SOPs when unit attribute forms have not yet been
updated due to regulatory amendments.
d. Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table and in the permit –
please refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 Instructions.
If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any
additional updates, let me know and we can discuss further.

I have conducted a technical review of this application and I have attached an electronic 
copy of the Working Draft Permit (WDP) for your review. This WDP contains the TCEQ 
determination of applicable requirements based on the information submitted in your 
application, and any updates provided. 

Please review the WDP and submit to me any comments you have regarding it 
by 11/28.  Please submit a written response by this deadline, even if you are not making 
any comments on the content of the WDP. Note that any application updates necessary to 
make requested changes must accompany the WDP comments. 

By the way, I see you have 4-5 OP-NOTIFY since last renewed issuance. Do you need to 
incorporate those op-notify in this project? 
If so, you can send me OP-2 and related forms. I can make changes.  

Please review the "SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet" located 



at http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_fac
tsheet.pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding the review process, 
application updates, WDP review and comment procedures. 
  
Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified 
submittals, including application updates supporting the WDP comments is required to be 
submitted with the WDP response. After final review of the WDP, additional changes, 
supported by application updates, may require certification.  I will advise you of these 
changes at a later date.  Prior to transmittal of the Public Notice/Announcement 
Authorization Package, a duly signed OP-CRO1 form may be required which includes the 
specific dates or time-period of all submitted application documentation that were not 
previously certified.  I will advise you of this requirement prior to sending the Public 
Notice/Announcement Authorization. 
  
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application 
updates that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require 
the submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided 
through email or physical mail require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1. 
  
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted. 
  
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and 
all application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 
at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This 
submittal information can be found on our website at Where to Submit FOP 
Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 
  
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or 
any other details regarding your application or permit. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
 
Jasmine Yuan 
TCEQ Air Permits Division 
P.O. Box 13087, MC 163 
Austin, TX 78753 
Phone: (512)239-6090 
Fax: (512)239-1400 
Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov 
 
How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
 

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf
mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/air/titlev/submittal.html
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/air/titlev/submittal.html
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg==&&&104&&&http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/customersurvey












1

Carolyn Thomas

From: TVAPPS
Sent: Friday, June 20, 2025 7:39 AM
To: Carolyn Thomas
Cc: APIRT
Subject: FW: STEERS / TV   38390 / 980 - Streamline - GEORGIA-PACIFIC WOOD PRODUCTS - 

794764

Categories: COMPLETE, Dont Forget There is a Deadline...., CAROLYN

 
 
Sean Wheeler 
Business Support SecƟon Process Coordinator Air Permits Division | TCEQ 
512-239-2253 | Sean.Wheeler@tceq.texas.gov 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: steers@tceq.texas.gov <steers@tceq.texas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 19, 2025 3:34 PM 
To: RFCAIR10 <RFCAIR10@tceq.texas.gov>; TVAPPS <tvapps@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: STEERS Title V ApplicaƟon SubmiƩal (New ApplicaƟon) 
 
The TV-E applicaƟon has been successfully submiƩed by TERRY BURCHAM. The submiƩal was received at 06/19/2025 
03:34 PM. 
 
 The Reference number for this submiƩal is 794764 
 
 The confirmaƟon number for this submiƩal is 659919. 
 The Area ID for this submiƩal is 980. 
 The Project ID for this submiƩal is 38390. 
The hash code for this submiƩal is 0EF9308EBBA63481D7A4C4106060B3E468AFDFADB5DB1DC00509BB808BEE0FB9. 
 
 You may access the original applicaƟon submiƩal and the noƟce of final acƟon documents from the COR Viewer which is 
available at hƩps://ida.tceq.texas.gov/steersstaff/index.cfm?fuseacƟon=openadmin.submitlog&newsearch=yes. 
 
 If you have any quesƟons, please contact the STEERS Help Line at 512-239-6925 or by e-mail at steers@tceq.texas.gov.  



From: TVAPPS
To: Rosa Mora-Nichols
Cc: APIRT
Subject: FW: STEERS/TV 37934 / 980 - ADMINREV - Georgia-Pacific Wood Products
Date: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 3:23:27 PM

-----Original Message-----
From: steers@tceq.texas.gov <steers@tceq.texas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 7:51 AM
To: RFCAIR10 <RFCAIR10@tceq.texas.gov>; TVAPPS <tvapps@tceq.texas.gov>
Subject: STEERS Title V Application Submittal (New Application)

The TV-E application has been successfully submitted by Terry Burcham. The submittal was received at 03/26/2025
07:51 AM.

 The Reference number for this submittal is 768228

 The confirmation number for this submittal is 641644.
 The Area ID for this submittal is 980.
 The Project ID for this submittal is 37934.
The hash code for this submittal is
CB6BA4B957D5469EC6FB94E4343ACEDFE548F35CCCFC3DEC3E0287A82AF39C69.

 You may access the original application submittal and the notice of final action documents from the COR Viewer
which is available at https://ida.tceq.texas.gov/steersstaff/index.cfm?
fuseaction=openadmin.submitlog&newsearch=yes.

 If you have any questions, please contact the STEERS Help Line at 512-239-6925 or by e-mail at
steers@tceq.texas.gov.

mailto:tvapps@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Rosa.Mora-Nichols@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:apirt@tceq.texas.gov
https://ida.tceq.texas.gov/steersstaff/index.cfm?fuseaction=openadmin.submitlog&newsearch=yes
https://ida.tceq.texas.gov/steersstaff/index.cfm?fuseaction=openadmin.submitlog&newsearch=yes






















Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Title V Existing

980

Site Information (Regulated Entity)

What is the name of the permit area to be
authorized?   CORRIGAN COMPLEX

Does the site have a physical address?   Yes
Physical Address  
Number and Street   800 INDUSTRIAL RD
City   CORRIGAN
State   TX
ZIP   75939
County   POLK
Latitude (N) (##.######)   31.016666
Longitude (W) (-###.######)   94.833611
Primary SIC Code   2436
Secondary SIC Code  
Primary NAICS Code   321212
Secondary NAICS Code  
Regulated Entity Site Information  
What is the Regulated Entity's Number (RN)?   RN100543073
What is the name of the Regulated Entity (RE)?   CORRIGAN PLYWOOD FACILITY
Does the RE site have a physical address?   Yes
Physical Address  
Number and Street   800 INDUSTRIAL RD
City   CORRIGAN
State   TX
ZIP   75939
County   POLK
Latitude (N) (##.######)   31.013333
Longitude (W) (-###.######)   -94.826944
Facility NAICS Code  
What is the primary business of this entity?   INDUSTRIAL

Customer (Applicant) Information

How is this applicant associated with this site?   Owner Operator
What is the applicant's Customer Number
(CN)?   CN603126640

Type of Customer   Corporation
Full legal name of the applicant:  
Legal Name   Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC
Texas SOS Filing Number   800762897
Federal Tax ID   562306374
State Franchise Tax ID   32025244206
State Sales Tax ID  



Local Tax ID  
DUNS Number   6944334
Number of Employees   501+
Independently Owned and Operated?   No

Responsible Official Contact

Person TCEQ should contact for questions
about this application:  

Organization Name   Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC
Prefix   MR
First   Terry
Middle  
Last   Burcham
Suffix  
Credentials  
Title   Regional Operations Manager
Enter new address or copy one from list:  
Mailing Address  
Address Type   Domestic
Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if
applicable)   800 INDUSTRIAL RD

Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)  
City   CORRIGAN
State   TX
ZIP   75939
Phone (###-###-####)   9362398264
Extension  
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)  
Fax (###-###-####)  
E-mail   terry.burcham@gapac.com

Duly Authorized Representative Contact

Person TCEQ should contact for questions
about this application  

Select existing DAR contact or enter a new
contact.   LESTER KNIGHT(GEORGIA-PACIFIC... )

Organization Name   GEORGIA-PACIFIC WOOD PRODUCTS LLC
Prefix   MR
First   LESTER
Middle  
Last   KNIGHT
Suffix  
Credentials  
Title   COMPLEX MANAGER
Enter new address or copy one from list  
Mailing Address  
Address Type   Domestic
Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if
applicable)   PO BOX 1005



Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)
City CORRIGAN
State TX
Zip 75939
Phone (###-###-####) 9363987302
Extension
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)
Fax (###-###-####) 9363987120
E-mail lknight@gapac.com

Technical Contact

Person TCEQ should contact for questions
about this application:
Select existing TC contact or enter a new
contact.

TRACEY POSEY(GEORGIA-PACIFIC... )

Organization Name GEORGIA-PACIFIC WOOD PRODUCTS
SOUTH LLC

Prefix MS
First TRACEY
Middle
Last POSEY
Suffix
Credentials
Title ENVIRONMENTAL COORDINATOR
Enter new address or copy one from list:
Mailing Address
Address Type Domestic
Mailing Address (include Suite or Bldg. here, if
applicable)

800 INDUSTRIAL RD

Routing (such as Mail Code, Dept., or Attn:)
City CORRIGAN
State TX
ZIP 75939
Phone (###-###-####) 9363987175
Extension
Alternate Phone (###-###-####)
Fax (###-###-####) 9363987120
E-mail TRACEY.POSEY@GAPAC.COM

Title V General Information - Existing

1) Permit Type: SOP
2) Permit Latitude Coordinate: 31 Deg 1 Min 0 Sec
3) Permit Longitude Coordinate: 94 Deg 50 Min 1 Sec
4) Is this submittal a new application or an
update to an existing application?

New Application

4.1. What type of permitting action are you
applying for?

Administrative Revision

4.1.1. Are there any permits that should be
voided upon issuance of this permit application
through permit conversion?

No



4.1.2. Are there any permits that should be
voided upon issuance of this permit application
through permit consolidation?

No

5) Who will electronically sign this Title V
application?

Duly Authorized Representative

6) Does this application include Acid Rain
Program or Cross-State Air Pollution Rule
requirements?

No

Title V Attachments Existing

Attach OP-1 (Site Information Summary)

Attach OP-2 (Application for Permit Revision/Renewal)

Attach OP-REQ1 (Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information)

Attach OP-REQ2 (Negative Applicable Requirement Determinations)

Attach OP-REQ3 (Applicable Requirements Summary)

Attach OP-PBRSUP (Permits by Rule Supplemental Table)

Attach OP-SUMR (Individual Unit Summary for Revisions)

Attach OP-MON (Monitoring Requirements)

Attach OP-UA (Unit Attribute) Forms

If applicable, attach OP-AR1 (Acid Rain Permit Application)

Attach OP-CRO2 (Change of Responsible Official Information)
[File Properties]
File Name <a href=/ePermitsExternal/faces/file?

fileId=246326>OP_CRO2_Corrigan OP-CRO2
for Terry Burcham Signed 3.17.25.pdf</a>

Hash A2654DCAFDBDE78888C09207D86AEB70F50AB43FE9C20D4539B31683648F16F3
MIME-Type application/pdf

Attach OP-DEL (Delegation of Responsible Official)

Attach any other necessary information needed to complete the permit.

An additional space to attach any other necessary information needed to complete the permit.

Expedite Title V

1) Per Texas Health and Safety Code, Section
382.05155, does the applicant want to expedite
the processing of this application?

No



Certification

I certify that I am the Duly Authorized Representative for this application and that, based on information and belief
formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information on this form are true, accurate, and complete.

1. I am Lester Knight, the owner of the STEERS account ER053780.
2. I have the authority to sign this data on behalf of the applicant named above.
3. I have personally examined the foregoing and am familiar with its content and the content of any attachments, and

based upon my personal knowledge and/or inquiry of any individual responsible for information contained herein, that
this information is true, accurate, and complete.

4. I further certify that I have not violated any term in my TCEQ STEERS participation agreement and that I have no
reason to believe that the confidentiality or use of my password has been compromised at any time.

5. I understand that use of my password constitutes an electronic signature legally equivalent to my written signature.
6. I also understand that the attestations of fact contained herein pertain to the implementation, oversight and enforcemen

of a state and/or federal environmental program and must be true and complete to the best of my knowledge.
7. I am aware that criminal penalties may be imposed for statements or omissions that I know or have reason to believe

are untrue or misleading.
8. I am knowingly and intentionally signing Title V Existing 980.
9. My signature indicates that I am in agreement with the information on this form, and authorize its submittal to the TCEQ

OWNER OPERATOR Signature: Lester Knight OWNER OPERATOR
Account Number: ER053780
Signature IP Address: 165.225.36.186
Signature Date: 2025-03-26
Signature Hash: C70487D910D1011792F164562D5C6FF90A0FF935FB7783E53254D34F4A34014E
Form Hash Code at
time of Signature:

CB6BA4B957D5469EC6FB94E4343ACEDFE548F35CCCFC3DEC3E0287A82AF39C69

Submission

Reference Number: The application reference number is 768228
Submitted by: The application was submitted by

ER053780/Lester Knight
Submitted Timestamp: The application was submitted on 2025-03-26

at 07:51:17 CDT
Submitted From: The application was submitted from IP address

165.225.36.186
Confirmation Number: The confirmation number is 641644
Steers Version: The STEERS version is 6.89
Permit Number: The permit number is 980

Additional Information

Application Creator: This account was created by Brandon Bush



  
  

    

  
 

 

      
   

      
     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

   

   

Form OP-CRO2 
Change of Responsible Official Information 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) shall be notified of a new appointment or administrative 
information change (e.g., address, phone number, title) for a Responsible Official (RO), Designated Representative (DR), 
or Alternate Designated Representative (ADR) in the next submittal. This form satisfies the requirements for notification 
(a revised Certificate of Representation must also be submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection agency for changes 
in the DR and ADR). After the initial submittal, if there is a change of Duly Authorized Representative (DAR) 
appointment or administrative information changes for the DAR, include a revised Form OP-DEL (Delegation of 
Responsible Official) with the next submittal to TCEQ. 

I. Identifying Information

Account No.: 

Regulated Entity Number: RN 

Customer Reference Number: CN 

Permit Number: 

Area Name: 

Company: 

II. Change Type

Action Type: 

New Appointment 

Administrative Information Change 

Contact Type (only one response accepted per form): 

Responsible Official 

Designated Representative (Acid Rain Program and/or CSAPR sources only) 

Alternate Designated Representative (Acid Rain Program and/or CSAPR sources only) 

TCEQ 10010 (APD-ID 271v1, Revised 08/24) OP-CRO2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

PF-0002-P

100543073

603126640

O980

Corrigan Plywood Facility

Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC



 

   
   

   

 
  

 

 
    

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Form OP-CRO2 
Change of Responsible Official Information 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

III. Responsible Official/Designated Representative/Alternate Designated Representative Information 

Conventional Title: 

Mr. 

Mrs. 

Ms. 

Dr. 

Name (Driver’s License/STEERS): 

Title: 

Appointment Effective Date: 

Telephone Number: 

Fax Number.: 

Company Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Email Address: 

TCEQ 10010 (APD-ID 271v1, Revised 08/24) OP-CRO2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Terry Burcham

Regional Operations Manager

936-239-8264

03/03/25

Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC

800 Industrial Rd

Corrigan

TX

75939

terry.burcham@gapac.com



 

  
  

    

 
  

 

 
   

    

  
    

 

     

    

  

Form OP-CRO2 
Change of Responsible Official Information 

Federal Operating Permit Program 

IV. Certification of Truth, Accuracy, and Completeness 

This certification does not extend to information, which is designated by TCEQ as information for reference only. 

I, ______________________________________________________ , certify that based on 
information and belief formed Reasonable inquiry, the statement and information stated above are true, accurate, and 
complete. 

Signature: 

Signature Date: 

TCEQ 10010 (APD-ID 271v1, Revised 08/24) OP-CRO2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Terry Burcham

Terry Burcham Digitally signed by Terry Burcham 
Date: 2025.03.17 10:13:57 -04'00'

03/17/2025



 

   
   

   

  
 

 

 
  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Change of Responsible Official 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

(Extension) 

V. Additional Identifying Information 

Account No.: 

Regulated Entity Number: RN 

Customer Reference Number: CN 

Permit Number: 

Area Name: 

Account Number: 

Regulated Entity Number: RN 

Customer Reference Number: CN 

Permit Number: 

Area Name: 

Account Number: 

Regulated Entity Number: RN 

Customer Reference Number: CN 

Permit No.: 

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

PF-0003-N

101286227

603126640

O982

Camden Plywood and Lumber Complex




